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       1                        P R O C E E D I N G S

       2                 (Transcript continues in sequence from Volume

       3       1.)

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.  Now am I

       5       swearing in witnesses?

       6                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, sir.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Your witnesses, are

       8       they here?  If I can just get the witnesses to stand and

       9       to raise your right hand.

      10                 (Witnesses collectively sworn.)

      11                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman?

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes.

      13                 MR. YOUNG:  Staff would note, per the

      14       Prehearing Officer's ruling, witness summaries shall not

      15       exceed five minutes per witness for each petition.

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yep.  I got that.

      17                 MR. YOUNG:  Staff witnesses in this, in this

      18       portion of the docket will be testifying as a panel, and

      19       the witness, witness summaries for that will not exceed

      20       five minutes.

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I also want to remind the

      22       parties that we're not going to have testimony that's

      23       duplicative, repetitive, and there is no friendly cross

      24       allowed.  I'm sure the Staff has already told you that,

      25       but I just want to let you know.
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       1                 Okay.  Mr. Anderson, first witness.

       2                 MR. ANDERSON:  I'll introduce my colleague

       3       Jessica Cano, who will present FPL's first witness,

       4       Steven Scroggs.

       5                 MS. CANO:  Thank you.

       6                          STEVEN D. SCROGGS

       7       was called as a witness on behalf of Florida Power &

       8       Light Company and, having been duly sworn, testified as

       9       follows:

      10                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      11       BY MS. CANO:

      12            Q    Mr. Scroggs, were you just sworn?

      13            A    Yes.

      14            Q    Would you please state your name and business

      15       address for the record?

      16            A    My name is Steve Scroggs.  I am the Senior

      17       Director of Development for Florida Power & Light

      18       Company.

      19            Q    Thank you.  Have you prepared and caused to be

      20       filed 73 pages of prefiled direct testimony on

      21       March 1st, 2011?

      22            A    Yes, I have.

      23            Q    And did you also prepare and cause to be filed

      24       42 pages of prefiled direct testimony in this proceeding

      25       on May 2nd, 2011?
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       1            A    Yes, I have.

       2            Q    Did you also cause to be filed one page of

       3       errata and updates on August 4th, 2011?

       4            A    Yes, I have.

       5            Q    Do you have any other changes or revisions to

       6       make to your prefiled testimony?

       7            A    No, I do not.

       8                 MR. ANDERSON:  We've been asked to have people

       9       speak up a little more clearly.

      10                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I think we can -- can we

      11       control that mic?  Thank you.

      12       BY MS. CANO:

      13            Q    If I were to ask you the same questions today

      14       that are contained in your prefiled testimony, would

      15       your answers be the same?

      16            A    Yes, they would.

      17                 MS. CANO:  Mr. Chairman, I ask that the

      18       prefiled direct testimony of Steven Scroggs be entered

      19       into the record as though read.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let's enter that prefiled

      21       testimony into the record as though read.

      22       BY MS. CANO:

      23            Q    Did you also sponsor or cosponsor exhibits to

      24       your testimony?

      25            A    Yes, I did.
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       1            Q    And do those consist of Exhibits SDS-1 through

       2       SDS-20?

       3            A    Yes, I did.

       4                 MS. CANO:  Mr. Chairman, I would note that

       5       these have been premarked for identification on Staff's

       6       exhibit list as Exhibits 2 through 21.
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       1       BY MS. CANO:

       2            Q    Mr. Scroggs, would you please provide an oral

       3       summary of your testimony to the Commission.

       4            A    Yes.

       5                 Good afternoon, Chairman and Commissioners.  I

       6       appreciate the opportunity to speak to you today.

       7                 The purpose of my testimony is to describe the

       8       activities associated with FPL's management of the

       9       Turkey Point 6 and 7 project from January 2009 to

      10       present, and the activities that are planned for the

      11       project through 2012.

      12                 The Turkey Point 6 and 7 project was developed

      13       in response to Federal Energy Policy and the Florida

      14       Energy Act of 2006, whose mutual objective was to

      15       promote utility investment in nuclear energy for the

      16       benefit of customers.  FPL began the effort in 2006, and

      17       in 2008 received a need order from this Commission that

      18       authorized pursuit of the Turkey Point 6 and 7 project.

      19                 From the outset, FPL chose an approach that

      20       would adjust the actual development and construction

      21       path in light of additional information, knowing that

      22       each year the Commission will have the ability to review

      23       and evaluate the decisions contemporaneously.  FPL has

      24       continuously worked with the NRC -- or the Commission

      25       Staff through the nuclear cost recovery clause to
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       1       routinely review the expenditures and decisions that

       2       comprise the initial licensing phase of the project.

       3                 The content of my testimony and the

       4       accompanying exhibits and nuclear filing requirements I

       5       sponsor once again provide the Commission with the

       6       information necessary to validate that FPL's actual

       7       costs through 2010 have been prudently incurred and that

       8       FPL's actual estimated costs for 2011 and projected

       9       costs for 2012 are reasonable.

      10                 Key decisions made in the past two years

      11       demonstrate how FPL is actively managing the project

      12       pace as the best means of managing risk.  As

      13       foreshadowed in 2009, the level of predictability in

      14       scheduling costs necessary to maintain the original

      15       project schedule did not appear by 2010.  In response to

      16       that, FPL chose to defer certain planned expenditures

      17       and extend the project schedule.  FPL's commitment to

      18       new nuclear has not changed.

      19                 Simply put, the project adapts to the pace of

      20       regulatory and market changes to maintain progress and

      21       manage risk.  FPL plans to proceed in this deliberate

      22       fashion because we know the clarity of schedule and

      23       predictability of costs can only come from continued

      24       diligent pursuit of this project.

      25                 My testimony also explains the nonbinding cost

                         FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       260

       1       estimate, then supports the conclusions of the annual

       2       feasibility analysis.  That annual feasibility analysis

       3       identifies that the project continues to be

       4       cost-effective for customers and offers the benefits of

       5       fuel diversity and emission-free generation that led to

       6       the Commission's original affirmative need order.

       7                 The Turkey Point 6 and 7 project provides an

       8       extraordinary opportunity to address three critical

       9       issues:  Supply reliability through fuel diversity;

      10       reasonableness of costs through low cost, stably priced

      11       generation; and meaningful greenhouse gas emission

      12       reductions through baseload generation with no

      13       emissions.

      14                 FPL's customers have enjoyed the benefits of

      15       nuclear power from decisions that were made over 40

      16       years ago.  We expect that they will -- through

      17       continued application of the nuclear cost recovery

      18       clause they'll be able to enjoy increased amount of

      19       these benefits in the future.

      20                 That concludes my summary.

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you, sir.

      22                 MS. CANO:  Thank you.  FPL tenders the witness

      23       for cross-examination.

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  The witness is up for

      25       cross-exam.  Who's going to be first?
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       1                 MS. KAUFMAN:  I think I've been designated.

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Now let me just make sure I

       3       understand.  As we go through all these FPL witnesses,

       4       you will always be first and OPC will always be second?

       5                 MS. KAUFMAN:  No.  I think I'm going to be

       6       first on this, this witness, if that's all right.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  That's fine.

       8                 MS. KAUFMAN:  I think Ms. Christensen was just

       9       going to -- wanted to make a comment.

      10                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  If you wanted to establish

      11       an order, that's fine.

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  No.  No.  I was just trying

      13       to figure it out.  I'll just look at you and you guys

      14       decide who's going next.

      15                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Okay.

      16                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you.

      17                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Thank you.

      18                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      19       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

      20            Q    Goodness.  Good afternoon, Mr. Scroggs.  How

      21       are you?

      22            A    Good afternoon.

      23            Q    I'm Vicki Kaufman.  I'm here on behalf of the

      24       Florida Industrial Power Users Group.

      25                 You are Senior Director of Project Development
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       1       at FPL; correct?

       2            A    That's correct.

       3            Q    And you're responsible for all power

       4       generation projects; is that right?

       5            A    I'm in the development business unit that is

       6       responsible for all power projects for the utility.  My

       7       particular assignment is this project, the Turkey Point

       8       6 and 7 project.

       9            Q    And is it correct that you have been involved

      10       with the Turkey Point 6 and 7 project really since its

      11       inception?

      12            A    That's correct.

      13            Q    And you were a witness, weren't you, in the

      14       determination of need case before the Commission?

      15            A    That's correct.  I was one of the witnesses.

      16            Q    Okay.  If you would turn to your testimony, I

      17       think this is your March testimony, to page 12, please.

      18            A    I'm there.

      19            Q    Okay.  And if you look at the question that

      20       begins on line 3, it says:  "What national level issues

      21       are being monitored for the potential impact to cost and

      22       schedule of the Turkey Point 6 and 7 project?"

      23                 And then you have three different categories

      24       of issues that are being monitored.  The first one that

      25       you've got there is the economy; correct?
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       1            A    That's correct.

       2            Q    What kinds of issues are you looking at in the

       3       economy that might impact the costs and schedule of the

       4       units?

       5            A    Particularly the economy affects the annual

       6       feasibility analysis, and the annual feasibility

       7       analysis is used to determine the feasibility of the

       8       project.  The economic issues involved in that analysis

       9       are reviewed by the Commission through the Ten-Year Site

      10       Plan and again through this docket and are consistent

      11       with our long-term approach for planning generation

      12       assets for the, for the company.

      13            Q    For example, is one of the issues that you

      14       look at on the national level, does it have to do with

      15       the cost of debt?

      16            A    There's not a -- to my understanding, Witness

      17       Sim would be more appropriate to answer specific

      18       questions about the annual feasibility analysis.

      19            Q    Well, when you told the Commission in this

      20       question and answer that you look at developments in the

      21       economy, were there specific items that you had in mind?

      22            A    As -- yes.  In the annual feasibility analysis

      23       we look at fuel forecasts, we look at demand forecasts,

      24       we look at the wide range of specific entries into that

      25       annual feasibility analysis.
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       1            Q    Do you look at, for -- I'm sorry.  I didn't

       2       mean to interrupt you.

       3            A    But that as an entity itself is not a specific

       4       input into the annual feasibility analysis.

       5            Q    Well, when you're deciding on the feasibility

       6       of the project, and particularly its costs, do you look

       7       at, for example, the credit downgrade that the United

       8       States just experienced?

       9            A    That's not a direct input, to my knowledge, to

      10       our annual feasibility analysis.

      11            Q    So are you saying that you do not look at

      12       national economic conditions when you're considering the

      13       cost of feasibility of the project?

      14            A    That's not what I said.

      15            Q    Okay.

      16            A    In answer to your question, do we look at the

      17       debt ratings of the United States as a specific input

      18       into our annual feasibility analysis, the answer is no.

      19       What we do look at is the overall business environment

      20       and the effect that has on commodity prices, demand, and

      21       our expectation for the need for the project.  Those are

      22       all incorporated in the annual feasibility analysis as

      23       presented.

      24            Q    Okay.  Thank you for that clarification.

      25                 Would you agree with me that developments in
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       1       the economy, particularly perhaps the developments that

       2       we've seen recently, have the potential to increase the

       3       costs of the project?

       4            A    Again, I'd not be the best witness to answer

       5       questions about, specifically about the annual

       6       feasibility analysis.  I can tell you that we see

       7       variations in commodities and prices and, and economic

       8       behavior throughout the long history of this project,

       9       and that is why the Commission relies on a very

      10       long-term and vetted process for determining the annual

      11       feasibility.

      12            Q    Well, let me ask you this, Mr. Scroggs.  Do

      13       you, do you think that the current economic climate has

      14       the potential to increase the cost of the project?  If

      15       you don't have an opinion, you can say so.

      16            A    It would be too difficult for me to address

      17       all the various things that could happen from the

      18       current.  We've seen, through the economic downturn

      19       we've seen commodity prices come down.  We've seen labor

      20       prices come down.  So there are opportunities for prices

      21       to moderate, as well as other prices or costs to

      22       increase.

      23            Q    There's also certainly potential for the costs

      24       of the project to increase; would you agree?

      25            A    There's potential for increase as well as
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       1       decrease.

       2            Q    The second item that you talk about that might

       3       impact the cost and the schedule is energy policy at a

       4       national, at national and regional levels.  I guess

       5       let's start with the national level.  What kind of

       6       national level issues are you monitoring related to

       7       energy policy?

       8            A    Well, certainly we look at the energy mix that

       9       the Federal Government is promoting through energy

      10       policy.  Recent statements from the Administration have

      11       been very strong in support of continuing the support of

      12       nuclear energy as a vital component to make meaningful

      13       greenhouse gas reductions, as well as increase fuel

      14       diversity and energy security.  So we look at, at those

      15       broad policy statements as well as individual programs,

      16       such as the Loan Guarantee Program that has been

      17       proposed to be, receive additional funding by the

      18       Administration this year, and we look to that as a

      19       potential opportunity to help our customers.

      20            Q    When you talk about national energy policy,

      21       have you taken a look at the nuclear incident that

      22       occurred in Japan as to how that might impact national

      23       energy policy?

      24            A    Absolutely.  That is a seminal event in the

      25       nuclear industry.  It will certainly have an effect on
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       1       how the project and the energy policy of the nation goes

       2       forward.  But, you know, the recent indications are that

       3       things remain on track.  The Nuclear Regulatory

       4       Commission in the past week have continued the process

       5       for approving the AP1000 by issuing a final safety

       6       evaluation report, and similarly issued a final safety

       7       evaluation report for the Vogtle projects in Georgia,

       8       which are the reference COLA for this project.

       9            Q    Do you think that as the NRC and other

      10       national agencies continue to, to study the, the

      11       incident in Japan, that that has a potential to delay

      12       the project?

      13            A    There's a potential for that.  And just like

      14       after 9/11, there will be lessons learned and we'll

      15       incorporate those lessons learned and we'll have a more

      16       robust process that follows.

      17            Q    Would you also agree that the continued

      18       analysis of the event in Japan have the potential to

      19       increase the costs of the project if additional

      20       requirements were put on the project, either at the

      21       federal or state level?

      22            A    Yes, that's possible.

      23            Q    Now you also talked about the progress of

      24       international and domestic projects, that they have the

      25       potential to affect the project.  I think we've talked
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       1       about the Japan issue.  Domestic projects, what does

       2       that refer to?

       3            A    Specifically we're looking at the Southern

       4       Vogtle project and the SCANA V.C. Summer projects, which

       5       are the lead AP1000 projects in the United States.

       6            Q    And as you take a look at those projects, to

       7       the extent they experience delays or cost increases, you

       8       would take that into account with the Turkey Point

       9       projects?

      10            A    That's correct.  In fact, that's very

      11       specifically why we chose to be at the lead of the

      12       second wave of nuclear projects, so that we can observe

      13       and learn from the lead projects and incorporate those

      14       appropriately to have a less risky, more precise project

      15       when we choose to execute.

      16            Q    And you'd agree that the lessons that might be

      17       learned from those projects also have the potential to

      18       delay the start date of the Turkey Point projects?

      19            A    That's a possibility.

      20            Q    I'm sorry to jump around, but if you could

      21       turn to your May testimony, page 5.

      22            A    I'm there.

      23            Q    And actually this is part of your summary that

      24       begins on the prior page, but I want to talk to you

      25       about your testimony that begins on line 5.  You say,
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       1       "FPL will be monitoring several major milestones

       2       expected to occur in 2011 and 2012 that will have

       3       influence on the predictability of the Turkey Point

       4       6 and 7 project cost and schedule."  What milestones are

       5       you monitoring that you refer to on line 6?

       6            A    Specifically the milestones associated with

       7       the AP1000 certification and the Southern Vogtle

       8       reference COLA, two of which I mentioned earlier, the

       9       on-time publication of the final safety analysis or

      10       safety evaluation reports from the NRC.

      11            Q    So the major milestones you're referencing are

      12       what happens to those two projects?

      13            A    Correct.

      14            Q    And in line 8 you talk about "The unfolding

      15       industry and regulatory response to the events in

      16       Japan."  So you would agree with me that, as we sit here

      17       today, we don't, we don't have certainty as to what

      18       additional requirements are going to be required as a

      19       result of the incident in Japan?

      20            A    Correct.  We don't have certainty.  But in the

      21       recent activities at the NRC, they've maintained the

      22       progress that they made on the AP1000 and Southern

      23       Vogtle projects, and are anticipating that those

      24       projects will complete on time by the end of this year

      25       or beginning of next year.
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       1            Q    But certainly you'd agree that the NRC and

       2       other regulatory agencies have not finished their review

       3       of what may be required in light of the Fukushima event.

       4            A    That's correct.  And Witness Diaz would be the

       5       proper witness to expound on what those actions might

       6       be.

       7            Q    And you certainly would agree that the

       8       unfolding industry and regulatory response has the

       9       potential to delay the project and increase its costs.

      10            A    That's a possibility.

      11            Q    If you would turn to page 15, still in your

      12       May testimony.

      13            A    I'm there.

      14            Q    Okay.  And, again, the question that begins at

      15       line 3 and continues, your answer continues about

      16       halfway done -- down, excuse me.  You're talking about

      17       international, national, and regional indicators that

      18       you're monitoring for their effect on the project;

      19       correct?

      20            A    That's correct.

      21            Q    And we've already discussed some of those.  If

      22       you would look at line 8, you say:  "The impacts of

      23       these events," and you're referring to the event in

      24       Japan, "will likely have operational, regulatory and

      25       political ramifications for the U.S. nuclear industry."
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       1       Is that right?

       2            A    That's correct.

       3            Q    And, and would you guess that those

       4       ramifications would likely result in an increase in the

       5       project costs?

       6            A    I can't draw any conclusions at this stage.

       7            Q    Okay.  Do you think they're going to result in

       8       a decrease?

       9            A    I can't draw a conclusion at this stage.

      10            Q    Wouldn't you think that the events in Japan

      11       would result in additional regulations and safety

      12       requirements on future nuclear projects?

      13            A    That's --

      14                 MS. CANO:  Excuse me.  I'm sorry, Mr.

      15       Chairman.  I'm going to object at this point.  That same

      16       question has been asked several times now, so it's

      17       getting a little repetitive.

      18                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I agree with your objection.

      19       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

      20            Q    Okay.  I'll move on.

      21                 Let's talk about the in-service date,

      22       Mr. Scroggs.  You said that you were a witness in the

      23       determination of need case?

      24            A    That's correct, ma'am.

      25            Q    What was the in-service date that the
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       1       Commission was told would, would be, would occur for

       2       this project in the determination of need case?

       3            A    Based on the assumptions and the time of the

       4       need determination, we projected 2018 for Unit 6 and

       5       2020 for Unit 7.

       6            Q    Okay.  And you've revised that schedule, or

       7       FPL has revised that schedule; correct?

       8            A    That's correct.

       9            Q    Okay.  And what does FPL now propose the

      10       in-service date to be for Unit 6?

      11            A    Unit 6 is estimated to be in service in 2022.

      12            Q    Okay.  So, so four years beyond what the

      13       Commission was originally told; correct?

      14            A    That's correct.

      15            Q    And what about Unit 7?

      16            A    2023.

      17            Q    Okay.  So that's three years beyond what the

      18       Commission was told; correct?

      19            A    That's correct.

      20            Q    And certainly there's the potential for

      21       further delay; correct?

      22            A    That's correct.

      23            Q    Okay.  And the last area I want to talk to you

      24       about, or maybe second to last, is the cost.  In your

      25       May testimony at page 39, I think, if you want to turn
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       1       to there.  At the top of the page, what have you told

       2       the Commission that the range, total range for this

       3       project is going to be, cost range?

       4            A    In this year's testimony, 12.8 billion to

       5       18.7.

       6            Q    Do you recall what costs FPL told the

       7       Commission the price range would be in the determination

       8       of need?

       9            A    Approximately 12 to 17.8 billion, subject to

      10       check.

      11            Q    Of course.  I think we're going to flip back

      12       to your other testimony, your March testimony, on page

      13       62, line 4.

      14            A    I'm there.

      15            Q    And the question is:  "Does FPL intend to

      16       pursue completion of the Turkey Point 6 and 7 project?"

      17                 And you say:  "Yes.  The most important near

      18       term activity is creating the option by obtaining

      19       licenses and approvals necessary to construct and

      20       operate."  Do you see that?

      21            A    Yes.

      22            Q    Okay.  As we sit here today, is it Florida

      23       Power & Light's intent to construct these units?

      24            A    Yes, it is.

      25            Q    When you use the term "option," what did you
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       1       mean by that, you were creating the option by obtaining

       2       these licenses?

       3            A    Well, at present time, the potential to build

       4       new nuclear units in Florida doesn't exist because we

       5       don't have the requisite licenses or approvals to do

       6       that.  So the first thing we need to do is create that

       7       option.  I think there's some misconception that option

       8       is a selection of whether or not to build.  It's really

       9       about when to build.  And when to build means when is it

      10       in the best interest of the customers.

      11                 Our belief is that by pursuing the option

      12       through getting the licenses, we define the project, we

      13       define the conditions of certification of the project,

      14       and we're much closer to the time that we would execute

      15       contracts to build that project.  That allows us to

      16       learn from what's happened with the Southern project and

      17       the SCANA project and incorporate those into our

      18       decision-making.

      19                 So I think the option has been perhaps twisted

      20       to determine -- to make it sound as if we would or

      21       wouldn't choose to.  We intend to.  We wouldn't be

      22       engaged in the licensing process if we didn't intend to.

      23       And it's really a question about when is the appropriate

      24       time to initiate the construction expenditures.

      25            Q    So when you use the term "option," you're not
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       1       talking about whether or not you're going to do it, you

       2       just aren't able to tell us when you would actually

       3       complete the project?

       4            A    That's, that's correct.

       5            Q    Do you know if FPL has been engaged in

       6       attempting to secure any partners to participate in the

       7       project?

       8            A    Annually I meet with a group of municipals

       9       from OUC, FMPA, other interested utilities around the

      10       state, and bring them up to speed on where the project

      11       is.  Because of where we are in the process, it wouldn't

      12       be the appropriate time to enter into any agreements, so

      13       our goal has been to continue to meet with these

      14       interested parties, understand their questions, answer

      15       their questions.  This year we spoke a lot about the

      16       Fukushima incident and how we see the events unfolded

      17       from that, and help them understand, without a lot of

      18       their own nuclear experience, what we're seeing at

      19       Fukushima.

      20            Q    So could I -- can I take from your comments

      21       that you certainly don't have any commitments from

      22       anybody to participate in the project with you?

      23            A    Nor have we asked for any.

      24            Q    Let me just ask you this.  You have a lot of

      25       experience in the utility industry.  Have you ever seen
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       1       a nuclear project come in under budget?

       2            A    There hasn't been a new nuclear project in

       3       some years, so I wouldn't -- in my experience, there has

       4       not been a new nuclear project.

       5            Q    And how about a project coming on earlier than

       6       the utility had told regulators?

       7            A    I've seen many projects come in early and

       8       under budget.

       9            Q    Nuclear projects?

      10            A    No.

      11            Q    Okay.  Have you ever --

      12            A    Again, within my experience in this industry,

      13       I haven't seen a new nuclear project initiated.

      14                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Scroggs.

      15                 Thank you, Chairman Graham.

      16                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I just want to put in an

      17       appearance.  Patty Christensen on behalf of the Office

      18       of Public Counsel.  I think that was unfortunately

      19       overlooked when we were doing the initial appearances.

      20                 And, that said, we have no questions for this

      21       witness.

      22                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      23                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Would

      24       you like me to proceed now?

      25                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes.
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       1                 MR. WHITLOCK:  I'm prepared to.

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes.

       3                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Thank you.

       4                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       5       BY MR. WHITLOCK:

       6            Q    Good morning -- afternoon, Mr. Scroggs.  I'm

       7       not sure exactly where we are.  How are you this

       8       morning?

       9            A    Good afternoon.

      10            Q    If you would, turn to the beginning of your

      11       March 1st testimony for me, please, sir.  Specifically

      12       page 4.  And the question that was posed to you there at

      13       line 2 is what are the purpose -- "What is the purpose

      14       of your testimony?"  Are you with me?

      15            A    I'm there.

      16            Q    Could you read the first two sentences,

      17       please, of your answer?  Out loud, please.

      18            A    "The purpose of my testimony is to describe

      19       the activities involved in the Turkey Point 6 and

      20       7 project throughout 2009 and '10.  Specifically, my

      21       testimony will describe the deliberate, stepwise process

      22       FPL is employing to create an option to provide new

      23       nuclear generation for our customers and how that

      24       process is being managed and controlled to ensure

      25       prudent expenditures and the best outcome possible."
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       1            Q    Okay.  And as we sit here today, that was the

       2       purpose of your March 1st testimony; correct?

       3            A    That's correct.

       4            Q    Okay.  Is that the same testimony you filed in

       5       the docket last year?

       6            A    No, it is not.

       7            Q    It's not?  Okay.  Could you turn over to, now

       8       to your May 2nd testimony for me, please.  And again at

       9       page 3 you're asked, at line 6, "What is the purpose of

      10       your testimony?"  And if you'll just read the first

      11       sentence of your answer out loud, please, sir.

      12            A    "The purpose of my testimony is to provide a

      13       description of how the Turkey Point 6 and 7 project is

      14       being developed, managed and controlled to create the

      15       option for more reliable, cost-effective and fuel

      16       diverse nuclear generation to benefit FPL's customers

      17       under the earliest practical deployment schedule."

      18            Q    So as we, as we take both sets of your

      19       testimony here together, each time when asked what the

      20       purpose of your testimony was, you've made reference to

      21       creating the option for new nuclear generation; correct?

      22            A    That's correct.  And for the earliest

      23       practical deployment schedule.

      24            Q    Okay.  So you'd agree with me, you'd agree

      25       with me that that would be an accurate description of
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       1       Florida Power & Light's 2010 as well as the current

       2       activities as they relate to Turkey Point 6 and 7;

       3       correct?

       4            A    That's correct.

       5            Q    Okay.  And, in fact, the Turkey Point 6 and 7

       6       project was originally developed to create an option for

       7       new nuclear generation; is that accurate?

       8            A    I'm not sure of your reference, but, as I

       9       explained in an earlier response, the option is about

      10       when we exercise our intent to construct.  So I believe

      11       that's an accurate statement of our, our position.

      12            Q    Okay.  If you would, back on your March

      13       testimony, if you could turn to Exhibit SDS-11, page 15

      14       of 21.  That's a Turkey Point 6 and 7 project

      15       memorandum.  The subject is the 2010 project schedule

      16       revision.  Just let me know when you're there.

      17            A    I'm there.

      18            Q    Okay.  You see the first section there,

      19       Background.  Would you read that first sentence out loud

      20       for me, please, sir.

      21            A    "The Turkey Point 6 and 7 project was

      22       developed to create the option for new nuclear

      23       generation so that FPL customers would benefit from

      24       unique economic, environmental, reliability, fuel

      25       diversity and energy security attributes offered by
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       1       nuclear generation."

       2            Q    Now nowhere in these last three statements of

       3       purpose or in this statement in this memorandum do you

       4       talk about the issue being when the project is going to

       5       be constructed, do you?

       6            A    I believe in the May testimony statement it is

       7       clear that it's about the earliest practicable

       8       deployment schedule.

       9            Q    Okay.  If you'll look back at your May 2nd

      10       testimony with me, at page 4.

      11            A    Page 4, you say?

      12            Q    Correct.

      13            A    Okay.

      14            Q    And if you would, starting on line 11, if you

      15       would just read the sentence following the sentence I

      16       just asked you to read, starting with "In doing."

      17            A    "In doing so, FPL is creating a valuable

      18       option that can be exercised at the most opportune time

      19       for the benefit of FPL customers."

      20            Q    And that says "that can be exercised."

      21       Correct?

      22            A    That's what it says.

      23            Q    It doesn't say that it will be exercised, does

      24       it?

      25            A    No.  It says can.
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       1            Q    And you were, you were asked by your attorney

       2       when you entered your testimony in the record if you

       3       wanted to correct anything, and you said, you said that

       4       you didn't; correct?

       5            A    That's correct.

       6            Q    Okay.  Do you recall submitting rebuttal

       7       testimony last year to the testimony of SACE witnesses

       8       Gundersen and Cooper?

       9            A    I recall submitting rebuttal testimony.  I

      10       don't know the status of that testimony.

      11            Q    Okay.

      12                 MS. CANO:  Excuse me.  Again, I'm going to

      13       object as this being outside the scope of the witness's

      14       testimony.  The rebuttal that he filed last year is not

      15       a part of this proceeding this year.

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

      17                 MR. YOUNG:  They are correct.  The rebuttal

      18       that he filed last year is not a part of the proceeding

      19       this year.

      20                 Also, I would remind SACE that the Prehearing

      21       Officer excluded Mr., Mr. Gundersen and Mr. Cooper's

      22       testimony, so any questions relating to that is not a

      23       part of this proceeding.

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I agree with the objection,

      25       and you heard what was said from the Prehearing Officer.
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       1                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Okay.  And just to be clear,

       2       I'm not trying to somehow put the Gundersen or Cooper

       3       testimony into the record --

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  That's fine.

       5                 MR. WHITLOCK:  -- in, in contravention to the

       6       Prehearing Officer's order.  I was just asking a

       7       question.

       8                 May I ask the witness a question about his

       9       rebuttal testimony?  I'm prepared to show him the

      10       rebuttal testimony.

      11                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I think you probably need to

      12       hand him the rebuttal testimony.

      13                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Oh, absolutely.  Thank you,

      14       Chairman.

      15                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman?

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes.

      17                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, I just want to

      18       clarify.

      19                 Are you saying that you're going to ask him

      20       about the rebuttal testimony he filed last year?

      21                 MR. WHITLOCK:  That's correct.

      22                 MR. YOUNG:  Okay.  I think that we have a

      23       standing objection from FPL that the rebuttal testimony,

      24       that the witness's rebuttal testimony from last year is

      25       not included in this year's prefiled direct testimony.
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       1       Therefore, it's outside the scope of the prefiled direct

       2       testimony, thus crossing, crossing the line on the

       3       questions.

       4                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Mr. Chairman, with all due

       5       respect to Staff, I mean, this is Mr. Scroggs' testimony

       6       that was filed last year.  I understand it's not a part

       7       of this year's docket.  I'm attempting to cross-examine

       8       him based on his, his, what he said in this testimony.

       9       It's certainly relevant under the rules of evidence, and

      10       I can't think of any basis to keep it out.

      11                 MR. YOUNG:  If he's offering it, if he's

      12       trying to use it for impeachment purposes, then Staff is

      13       comfortable with that because it's a prior sworn

      14       testimony that the witness has provided.  But I would

      15       suggest that the counsel walk very, very lightly on

      16       terms of how he proceeds, because I think FPL would be

      17       willing to object.

      18                 MS. CANO:  Excuse me.  I'm sorry.  FPL

      19       maintains its objection.  I think Mr. Whitlock basically

      20       stated why, and that's that he intends to ask him about

      21       rebuttal testimony filed last year.  And the purpose of

      22       this time is to cross-examine the witness on his direct

      23       testimony filed this year.  So the questions are outside

      24       the scope of his testimony.

      25                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I understand the objection
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       1       about it being outside the scope, and I guess I, I look

       2       towards our legal for direction more than anything else,

       3       that if it's to impeach something that's outside of the

       4       scope, is that still permittable?

       5                 MS. HELTON:  Mr. Chairman, maybe if I can take

       6       a stab at it.  If -- I agree with Mr. Young's suggestion

       7       to Mr. Whitlock that he needs to walk carefully here.

       8       However, if he is using his rebuttal testimony to

       9       impeach testimony he has filed in this record or to show

      10       some inconsistency or some credibility issues, I do

      11       believe that that's appropriate here.  And I guess until

      12       we hear the question, we really don't know what train

      13       he's, he's going down, or what path he's going down.

      14                 So I would suggest that we let Mr. Whitlock

      15       ask his question.  Before the witness answers, give

      16       Florida Power & Light an opportunity to object or not,

      17       then we can go from there.

      18                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, also, I just want to

      19       note, I said prior sworn testimony.  The witness's

      20       testimony yesterday -- last year was not entered into

      21       the record and it was not sworn.  I just want to clarify

      22       that.

      23                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  One more time.

      24                 MR. YOUNG:  I misspoke when I said prior sworn

      25       testimony.  It was not prior sworn testimony, because
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       1       last year FPL's portion of the docket, no testimony was

       2       entered into the record.  I just wanted to clarify the

       3       record on that.

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

       5                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Mr. Chairman, if I could.

       6       Mr. Scroggs has testified in response to questions from

       7       Ms. Kaufman in regards to his opinion that this, that

       8       the Intervenors are somehow spinning his testimony of

       9       creating an option, and it's a question of when, not a

      10       question of if.  And I think I'd like to be able to

      11       point to his, his rebuttal testimony as well as his

      12       testimony in this year's docket and see where he has

      13       stated that besides verbally today, just to give you an

      14       idea of what I'm getting at.

      15                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let's proceed.

      16                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Thank you.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Can we get someone from

      18       Staff to pass this stuff out?

      19                 MS. HELTON:  Mr. Whitlock, were you planning

      20       on marking this for identification purposes for the

      21       record?

      22                 MR. WHITLOCK:  I would like to.  Thank you.

      23                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, I guess the question I

      24       have is are we going to mark this for the record before

      25       we agree that we can even go down this path?
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       1                 MR. YOUNG:  It's for identification purposes

       2       only, as it, as it stands right now.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  So for identification

       4       purposes we mark this as Exhibit 194; is that correct?

       5                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, sir.

       6                 (Exhibit 194 marked for identification.)

       7                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

       8                 Thank you, Staff.

       9                 May I proceed, Mr. Chairman?

      10                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes, sir.

      11                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Thank you.

      12       BY MR. WHITLOCK:

      13            Q    Mr. Scroggs, do you see on page 9, line 3, you

      14       were asked the question:  "Do all of FPL's activities

      15       related to Turkey Point Units 6 and 7 for which NCRC

      16       cost recovery is sought qualify as the siting, design,

      17       licensing, and construction of a nuclear power plant as

      18       contemplated by Section 366.93, Florida Statutes?"  Do

      19       you see that question?

      20            A    I do.

      21            Q    Okay.  Could you read me your answer, please,

      22       sir.

      23                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Mr. Chairman, I think it's

      24       clear when I ask the witness to read an answer that I'm

      25       asking him to read it out loud.
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       1                 MR. ANDERSON:  Let me speak to this.  FPL

       2       maintains its objection.  Reading this, this is not

       3       impeachment at all.  This is entirely consistent

       4       testimony from the prior year, it is not part of this

       5       year's proceeding, and there should be no further

       6       questioning on, on a prior year docket of this type.

       7                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Mr. Chairman, this is --

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Hold, hold it.

       9                 Staff?

      10                 MS. HELTON:  Mr. Chairman, I do think it would

      11       be appropriate for Mr. Whitlock to respond at this time.

      12                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Mr. Chairman, I just -- and FPL

      13       has articulated no reason why this evidence is not

      14       relevant for purposes of this year's proceeding.

      15                 MR. ANDERSON:  It's outside the scope of the

      16       testimony.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

      18                 MR. WHITLOCK:  And I would also, if I could,

      19       just point out the question that I'm asking Mr. Scroggs

      20       about is, in fact, an issue in this year's docket.

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I tell you what, this sounds

      22       like a good, sounds like a good time to take a lunch

      23       break.  So I'll give our legal Staff some time to mull

      24       over this stuff, and we will take a recess and we'll

      25       reconvene at -- how about 1:45.
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